
          

 

 

KENDALL BREEZE WEST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
MAY 17, 2023 

7:00 P.M. 
 

 

 
 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 

Miami, FL 33193 
 

www.kendallbreezewestcdd.org 
786.347.2700 ext. 2027 Telephone 

877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile    



AGENDA 
KENDALL BREEZE WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Community Clubhouse – Meeting Room  
11780 SW 138th Avenue 

Miami, Florida 33186 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 

May 17, 2023 
 7:00 p.m. 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication...………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. March 15, 2023 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………………Page 2 

G. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………Page 9 

2. Receive Public Comments 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget………….Page 10 

H. Old Business 

1. Update Regarding Asphalt Repairs & Installation of Reflective Pavement Markings 

2. Update Regarding Sidewalk Slab Replacement (SW 137th Path & SW 116th Terrace) 

3. Update Regarding Additional Speed Humps (SW 115th Lane and SW 116th Terrace)……….…Page 17 

4. Update Regarding Stormwater System Cleaning 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule…….Page 20 

J. Administrative & Operational Matters  

1. Statement of Financial Interests 2022 Form 1 – Filing Deadline: July 1, 2023 

K. Board Member & Staff Closing Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



KENDALL BREEZE WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 15, 2023 

A. CALL TO ORDER

District Manager Nancy Nguyen called the March 15, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Kendall 
Breeze West Community Development District (the “District”) to order at approximately 7:11 p.m. 
in the Meeting Room at the Kendall Breeze West Community Clubhouse located at 11780 SW 
138th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33186.  

B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION

Ms. Nguyen presented proof of publication that notice of the March 15, 2023, Regular Board 
Meeting had been published in the Miami Daily Business Review on October 10, 2022, as part of 
the District’s fiscal year 2022/2023 meeting schedule, as legally required. 

C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM

It was determined that the attendance of Chairman Eduardo Sanchez (who arrived at 7:36 p.m.), 
Vice Chairwoman Marianna Antunez and Supervisors Liana Cervino and Jessica Figueroa 
constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the meeting. 

Attending Staff were as follows: District Manager Nancy Nguyen and Field Operations Manager 
Ryan Quiroga of Special District Services, Inc.; and General Counsel Gregory George of Billing, 
Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 

Also in attendance was: Dena Sherman of Miami, Florida. 

D. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 – DECLARING VACANCIES (SEAT 1 AND
2)

Ms. Nguyen presented Resolution No. 2023-01, entitled: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE KENDALL BREEZE WEST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DECLARING VACANCIES ON 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PURSUANT TO SECTION 
190.006(3)(b), FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Ms. Nguyen provided an explanation for the document and advised that the 4-year terms of office 
for Seat 1 (currently held by Marianna Antunez) and Seat 2 (currently held by Eduardo Sanchez) 
expired in November 2022. She further explained that no elector had qualified for Seat 1 or Seat 
2 to be filled in the General Election. Pursuant to Section 190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes, the 
District is required to declare the seats to be filled by the election to which no qualified elector has 

Page 2



qualified as vacant and to appoint a qualified elector to fill each such vacancy within ninety (90) 
days of the second Tuesday following the General Election. Until such appointment, the incumbent 
board member in such seat shall remain in office.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Ms. Cervino and unanimously passed declaring 
Seats 1 and 2 as vacant effective November 22, 2022, and further authorizing incumbent Board 
Members in these seats to remain in office until the appointment of a qualified elector to such 
seats. 
 
E. DISCUSSION REGARDING VACANCIES IN SEATS 1, 2, AND 3 
 
Ms. Nguyen stated that vacancies had been declared in Seats 1 and 2 effective as of the second 
Tuesday of November (November 22, 2022) following the November General Election 
(November 8, 2022). Pursuant to Section 190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes, incumbents (holdover 
Board Members) will serve no longer than ninety (90) days or until appointments to the vacancies 
have been made. A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Ms. Cervino and unanimously passed 
appointing Marianna Antunez to Seat 1; and such terms of office will expire in November 2026.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Ms. Cervino and unanimously passed 
appointing Eduardo Sanchez to Seat 2; and such terms of office will expire in November 2026.  
 
Ms. Nguyen reminded the Board that there is still a vacancy in Seat 3; and such term expires in 
November 2024.  
 
F. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE AND REVIEW NEW BOARD MEMBER 

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Ms. Nguyen, Notary Public in the State of Florida, administered the Oath of Office to Ms. Antunez.  

Ms. Nguyen stated that she would communicate with Mr. Sanchez to administer his Oath of Office. 

NOTE: Ms. Nguyen administered Mr. Sanchez’s Oath of Office during Item N.  

G. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
As a result of the changes to the Board of the District, Ms. Nguyen recommended that re-election 
of the District’s Officers take place. She provided the following slate of names for election: 

 Chairman – Eduardo Sanchez 
 Vice Chairwoman – Marianna Antunez 
 Secretary/Treasurer – Nancy Nguyen 
 Assistant Secretaries – Jessica Figueroa, Liana Cervina, Armando Silva and Gloria 

Perez 
 
The Board requested that the elections be rotated. A discussion ensued, after which, Ms. Nguyen 
provided the following slate of names for election:  
 

 Chairwoman – Liana Cervino 

Page 3



 Vice Chairwoman – Jessica Figueroa 
 Secretary/Treasurer – Nancy Nguyen 
 Assistant Secretaries – Eduardo Sanchez, Marianna Antunez, Armando Silva, and 

Gloria Perez 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Antunez, seconded by Ms. Cervino and passed unanimously to 
electing the District’s Officers, as listed above. 
 
H. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
I. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
J. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. October 19, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
Ms. Nguyen presented the minutes of the October 19, 2022, Regular Board Meeting and asked if 
there were any changes and/or corrections. Mr. George, requested a change on item K.5. Ms. 
Nguyen noted the request. There being no additional comments or changes, a motion was made 
by Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Ms. Cervino and passed unanimously approving the minutes of the 
October 19, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as amended. 
 
K. OLD BUSINESS 

1. Discussion Regarding Pressure Cleaning of Sidewalks (2nd Application) 
 
Ms. Nguyen stated that the sidewalk pressure cleaning second application of fiscal year 2022/2023 
was scheduled for April 11th and the project should take approximately 2-3 days to complete.  
 

2. Discussion Regarding Preservation Area Perimeter Invasive Vegetation Cleanup 
 
Ms. Nguyen explained that the preservation area perimeter invasive vegetation cleanup, Phase 3, 
had been completed. She further explained that this was the last phase of the cleanup and the 
District would now only perform the monthly maintenance of the preservation area. Ms. Nguyen 
further explained that the District was using the $12,000 in the Special Projects budget line for this 
vegetation cleanup project and that going forward the District could use the funds in that budget 
line for other projects, such as the resurfacing of the roads project.  
 
NOTE: Ms. Dena Sherman, who was in attendance to discuss the additional speed humps, arrived 
at approximately 7:24 p.m.  
 
The Board welcomed Ms. Sherman. Ms. Figueroa explained that there was a vacancy in Seat 3, 
which term expires in November 2024, and asked if Ms. Sherman would be interested in serving 
on the Board.  Ms. Nguyen confirmed that Ms. Sherman was a qualified person. A discussion 
ensued, after which: 
 

Page 4



A motion was made by Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Ms. Antunez and unanimously passed 
appointing Dena Sherman to Seat 3; and such term of office will expire in November 2024.    
 
Ms. Nguyen, Notary Public in the State of Florida, administered the Oath of Office to Ms. 
Sherman.  Following the adjournment of today’s meeting, Ms. Nguyen and Mr. George will review 
the duties and responsibilities as a Board Member with Ms. Sherman, providing emphasis on the 
Sunshine Law, Financial Disclosure for Public Officials (2022 Form 1 must be completed and 
mailed to the Supervisor of Elections in the County of residency within thirty (30) days of 
appointment) and the Code of Ethics for Public Officials. 
 
As a result of the changes to the Board of the District, Ms. Nguyen recommended that re-election 
of the District’s Officers take place. She provided the following slate of names for election: 
 

 Chairwoman – Liana Cervino 
 Vice Chairwoman – Jessica Figueroa 
 Secretary/Treasurer – Nancy Nguyen 
 Assistant Secretaries – Eduardo Sanchez, Marianna Antunez, Dena Sherman, Armando 

Silva, and Gloria Perez 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Ms. Antunez and passed unanimously to 
electing  the District’s Officers, as listed above. 
 
L. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Discussion Regarding Asphalt Repairs & Installation of Reflective Pavement 
Markings 

 
Ms. Nguyen stated that an inspection of the roads throughout the community had been conducted. 
Ms. Nguyen presented the following three (3) proposals for the installation of eighty-four (84) 
yellow reflective pavement markings and asphalt patches for approximately 3,200 SQFT. 

 LEGA Stripping and More, Inc.: $9,745 
 Southern Asphalt Engineering, Inc.: $13,972.50 
 GenCon Partners, Inc.: $26,088 

 
Ms. Nguyen advised that during the inspection it was noted that there were approximately 1,518 
SQFT that require asphalt patchwork on areas owned by the Kendall Breeze West Homeowners’ 
Association, Inc. (the “HOA”).  Ms. Nguyen stated that she had provided the HOA Manager with 
this information and also provided her contacts for the 3 companies that the District requested 
proposals from.  A discussion ensued, after which: 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Ms. Cervino and unanimously passed accepting 
the proposal received from LEGA Stripping and More, Inc. in the amount of $9,745 for the 
installation of 84 reflective pavement markings and asphalt patches for approximately 3,200 
SQFT; and further authorizing District Counsel to create a small project agreement and further 
authorizing the District Manager to execute such agreement on behalf of the District.  
 

2. Discussion Regarding Sidewalk Slab Replacement (SW 137th Path & SW 116th 
Terrace) 

 

Page 5



Ms. Nguyen stated that this item was added at the request of Mr. Sanchez. She further explained 
that there were four (4) cracked sidewalk slabs in the area near the intersection of SW 137th Path 
and SW 116th Terrace. Ms. Nguyen presented a proposal from LEGA Stripping and More, Inc. in 
the amount of $2,700 for the replacement of the 4 sidewalk slabs.  A discussion ensued, after 
which:  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Ms. Cervino and unanimously passed accepting 
the proposal received from LEGA Stripping and More, Inc. in the amount of $2,700 for the 
replacement of four (4) sidewalk slabs; and further authorizing District Counsel to create a small 
project agreement and further authorizing the District Manager to execute such agreement on 
behalf of the District.   
 
Mr. George stated that he would combine the asphalt repair and sidewalk slab replacement 
agreements.  
 

3. Discussion Regarding Additional Speed Humps (SW 115th Lane & SW 116th 
Terrace) 

 
Ms. Nguyen explained that this agenda item was added at the request of Ms. Sherman, who 
expressed her concern about motorists speeding when traveling west from SW 137th Path on SW 
115th Lane and SW 116th Terrace.  Ms. Sherman noted that there were many children living in the 
homes on these roads and she was worried that someone might be injured.  The Board agreed that 
they also had witnessed speeding on these roads and confirmed that there was a lot of pedestrian 
activity in the area.  As a result, the Board requested that the District Engineer inspect the roads 
and provide recommendations on how to address the issue of speeding in the area.  Ms. Nguyen 
acknowledged the Board’s request.  
 

4. Discussion Regarding Stormwater System Cleaning 
 
Ms. Nguyen stated that an inspection of the District’s stormwater system had been completed and 
presented a map depicting the results of the inspection. Ms. Nguyen explained that there were a 
total of nineteen (19) structures that require cleaning.  
 
Ms. Nguyen presented three (3) proposals:  

 Raptor Vac-Systems, Inc.: $1,900 
 AmeriClean Pumping, Inc.: $2,375 
 Pump Outs Unlimited, Inc.: $5,275 

Following a discussion, a motion was made by Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Mr. Sanchez and 
unanimously passed accepting the proposal received from Raptor Vac-Systems, Inc. in the amount 
of $1,900 for the jetting of nineteen (19) stormwater system structures; and further authorizing 
District Counsel to create a small project agreement and further authorizing the District Manager 
to execute such agreement on behalf of the District.  
 

5. Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed 
Budget 

 
Ms. Nguyen presented Resolution No. 2023-02, entitled: 

Page 6



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
KENDALL BREEZE WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET AND NON-AD VALOREM 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Nguyen read the title of the resolution into the record and explained that she would be keeping 
the Special Project budget line to collect additional funds for the roadway resurfacing project.  Ms. 
Nguyen advised that since the overall proposed assessments were not increasing in the fiscal year 
2023/2024, letters to the residents would not be required.  Furthermore, Ms. Nguyen stated that as 
part of Resolution No. 2023-02, the Board must set a date for the public hearing to adopt the fiscal 
year 2023/2024 final budget and assessment roll.  A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Ms. Cervino and unanimously passed 
approving and adopting Resolution No. 2023-02, as presented, setting the public hearing to adopt 
the fiscal year 2023/2024 final budget and assessments for May 17, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Meeting Room at the Kendall Breeze West Community Clubhouse located at 11780 SW 138th 
Avenue, Miami, Florida 33186; and further authorizing the publication/notice of the budget public 
hearing, as required by law. 
 

6. Consider Engineering Updated Rates Request (Alvarez Engineers) 
 
Ms. Nguyen presented a letter from Alvarez Engineers, the District Engineer, respectfully 
requesting the Board’s consideration in updating the engineering hourly billing rates for 
engineering personnel.  Ms. Nguyen noted that the current billing rates had been in effect since 
2015 and that the proposed increased amount to approximately 10%.  Ms. Nguyen also confirmed 
that the District’s budget includes sufficient funds for the budget line and that the increase in billing 
rates would not affect the District’s budget.  As per Alvarez Engineers, the billing rates will be 
reviewed again after a period of five (5) years.  A discussion ensued, after which:     
 
A motion was made Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Ms. Cervino and unanimously passed accepting 
the updated billing rates proposed by Alvarez Engineers; and further authorizing District Counsel 
to prepare an Engineering Agreement and further authorizing the District Manager to execute such 
Engineering Agreement on behalf of the District.   
 

7. Consider Adjustment to District Counsel Fee Structure 
 
Ms. Nguyen presented a letter provided to her by Mr. George.  Mr. George explained that District 
Counsel’s firm, Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A., had had the current fee structure 
in place since 2004.  Mr. George further explained that although the firm was mindful of the 
necessity to keep increases in the District’s expenses, including the cost of legal services, to a 
minimum, it had become necessary for the firm to adjust their hourly rates, effective April 1, 2023.  
 
Ms. Nguyen confirmed that the District’s budget included sufficient funds for the legal budget 
line, and that the increase in billing rates would not affect the District’s budget.  

Page 7



 
A motion was made by Ms. Figueroa, seconded by Ms. Antunez and unanimously passed 
accepting the updated billing rates proposed by Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A.. 
 
M. ADMINISTRATIVE & OPERATIONAL MATTERS 

1. Staff Report, as Required 
 
There was no staff report at this time.  
 
N. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Nguyen stated that unless an emergency were to arise, the Board would not need to meet until 
May 17, 2023. 
 
Ms. Nguyen, Notary Public in the State of Florida, administered the Oath of Office to Mr. Sanchez. 

O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. Figueroa, 
seconded by Ms. Antunez and passed unanimously adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 
approximately 8:06 p.m. 
 

 

_________________________________                              ______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary                           Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 8



Miscellaneous Notices 
Published in Miami Daily Business Review on April 27, 2023 

Location Miami-Dade County, Florida 
Notice Text 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE 
KENDALL BREEZE WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
The Board of Supervisors (the "Board") of the Kendall Breeze West 
Community Development District (the "District") will hold a Public 
Hearing and Regular Board Meeting on May 17, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., or as 
soon thereafter as the meeting can be heard, in the Kendall Breeze West 
Community Clubhouse Meeting Room located at 11780 SW 138th 
Avenue, Miami, Florida 33186. 
The purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comment on the 
District's Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Final Budget and Non-Ad 
Valorem Assessment Roll of the District. The purpose of the Regular 
Board Meeting is for the Board to consider any other District business 
which may lawfully and properly come before the Board. A copy of the 
Proposed Final Budget and/or the Agenda may be obtained from the 
District's website or at the offices of the District Manager, 8785 SW 
165th Avenue, Suite 200, Miami, Florida 33193, during normal business 
hours. The meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of Florida law for community 
development districts. Meetings may be continued as found necessary 
to a time and place specified on the record. 
There may be occasions when one or two Board members will 
participate by telephone; therefore, a speaker telephone will be present 
at the meeting location so that Board members may be fully informed of 
the discussions taking place. 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
any person requiring special accommodations or an interpreter to 
participate at these meetings should contact the District Manager at 
786-347-2700 ext. 2027 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922, at least 
seven (7) days prior to the date of the meetings. 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any 
matter considered at this Public Hearing and Regular Board Meeting, 
such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at 
their own expense and which record includes the testimony and 
evidence on which the appeal is based. 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
Kendall Breeze West Community Development District 
www.kendallbreezewestcdd.org 
4/27 5/4 23-49/0000659155M  Page 9



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE KENDALL 
BREEZE WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING 
AND ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 FINAL BUDGET 
INCLUDING NON-AD VALOREM SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Kendall Breeze West Community Development District (the “District”) 
has prepared a Proposed Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
and has held a duly advertised Public Hearing to receive public comments on the Proposed 
Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll; and 
 
 WHEREAS, following the Public Hearing and the adoption of the Proposed Budget and 
Final Assessment Roll, the District is now authorized to levy non-ad valorem assessments upon 
the properties within the District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE KENDALL BREEZE WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
THAT:  
 
 Section 1. The Final Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted, and the assessments set forth 
therein shall be levied. 
 
 Section 2. The Secretary of the District is authorized to execute any and all necessary 
transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as necessary, to comply with 
the intent of this Resolution. 
  

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 17th day of May, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: KENDALL BREEZE WEST 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 10



      Kendall Breeze West
 Community Development District

    Final Budget For
     Fiscal Year 2023/2024

       October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



26
27

28

29

32

33

34

35

36

12

3

4

5

8 9
10

11 12

13

14
15

16

17

20

21

22

23

24

6

7

31

30

18

19

28

32

5

4

9
8

17
16

21

20

33

25
26

27

28
29

32 33
34 35

36

30
29

31 32

29

SY
ST

EM

R.
R.

NEW

TAMIAMI

AIRPORT

C
-100C

S-119

S-122

C-2

C-100

S-118

C-100B

C-1N

S-121

Hawley

Peters

Lindgren
South
Miami
Heights

Perrine

Heights

Sterling

Rockdale

HowardHeights

Richmond

Green-Mar Acres

Lakes
Kendall

KENDALL

Oolite

PALMETTO BAY

986

990

915

992

794

825

FS

F
S

F
S

FS

FS

TOLL

874

North

CP

CP

CP CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

FS

C
P

CP

C
P

F
S

C
P

CP

Sunset
Dr.

Kendall Drive

Killian

Coral Reef Dr.

KENDALL

GUARD

TIMER

University of Miami

(South Campus)

DriveHoward

R
d.

N
ew
ton

Eureka Drive
SE

AB
O
AR

R
oad

Richmond  Rd.

R
oad

L
indgren

TOLL

821

LOCATION OF PROJECT

T-54-S

T-55-S

NO.

SHEET

12:13:42 PM P:\040102 - Century Breeze - Kendall Breeze West CDD (Yearly Report)\Speed Humps On SW 137 Path, 115 LA & 116 Ter\002-CAD\keysrd01.dgnCcastaneira 4/6/2023

EXPRESSWAY

T
U

R
N
P
IK

E

10

PENSACOLA FORT WALTON

BEACH

PANAMA
CITY

CHIPLEY

TALLAHASSEE

75

10

295

95

JACKSONVILLE

ST AUGUSTINE

GAINESVILLE

OCALA DAYTONA BEACH

DELAND
4

NEW PORT RICHEY

TAMPA

75
4

LAKELAND

MELBOURNE -
COCOA

ORLANDO

BARTOWST PETERSBURG

275

SARASOTA -

BRADENTON

75

95

FT PIERCE

FT MYERS

WEST PALM

BEACH

FT LAUDERDALE

MIAMI

75

75

NAPLES

KEY WEST

CITY

LAKE 

SHEET DESCRIPTIONSHEET NO.

INDEX OF ROADWAY PLANS

GOVERNING DESIGN STANDARDS:

ENGINEER OF RECORD:

ROADWAY PLANS

AS AMENDED BY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

AND THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ROADWAY AND TRAFFIC DESIGN STANDARDS, 

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE FOR STREETS AND HIGHWAYS. THE FLORIDA 

PARTS 1, 2 AND 3. THE MANUAL OF UNIFORM MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR DESIGN,

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

THESE PLANS HAVE BEEN PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AND ARE GOVERNED BY THE 

R
-4

0
-E

R
-3

9
-E

MIAMI

TO

CUTLER BAY

TO

1

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY

N

KNOW WHAT'S BELOW
ALWAYS CALL 811
BEFORE YOU DIG

It's fast. It's free. It's the law.

www.sunshine811.com

R

                                                        

ON ANY ELECTRONIC COPIES.

AND THE SIGNATURE MUST BE VERIFIED 

ARE NOT CONSIDERED SIGNED AND SEALED

PRINTED COPIES OF THIS DOCUMENT

CITY OF  MIAMI

F
LO

R
ID

A
'S

BEACH LINE

STATE OF

� � �

No 58579

R
E

E
NI

G
NE LANOI

S
S

E

F
O

R
P

ESNECI
L

A
DIROL

F

A
E

NI
HC .R ODLA

N
Y

E
R

T
H

E
 

O
F

F
I

C
I

A
L
 

R
E

C
O

R
D
 

O
F
 

T
H
I

S
 

S
H

E
E

T
 
I

S
 

T
H

E
 

E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N
I

C
 

F
I

L
E
 

D
I

G
I

T
A

L
L

Y
 

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

A
N

D
 

S
E

A
L

E
D
 

U
N

D
E

R
 

R
U

L
E
 
6
1

G
1
5
-
2
3
.
0
0
4
,
 

F
.

A
.

C
.

R
-4

0
-E

R
-3

9
-E

1 KEY SHEET

T-55-S

T-56-ST-55-S

T-56-S

T-54-S

T-55-S

PINECREST

TO

SOUTH MIAMI

TO

SWEETWATER

 TO

8935 N.W. 35 LANE, SUITE 101          

MIAMI, FLORIDA 33172                  

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION 7538    

REYNALDO R. CHINEA                    

P.E. LICENSE NUMBER 58579

ALVAREZ ENGINEERS, INC.               

REYNALDO R. CHINEA, ON 05/11/2022.

SIGNED AND SEALED BY

THIS ITEM HAS BEEN DIGITALLY

SPEED HUMP ROADWAY PLAN AND DETAILS2

Doral, Florida 33172

8935 N.W. 35 Lane , Suite 101

FLORIDA CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION No. 7538

ALVEREZ ENGINEERS, INC.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPEMENT DISTRIC

CENTURY BREEZE-KENDALL BREEZE WEST

KENDALL BREEZE WEST CDD

CENTURY BREEZE-

PROJECT LOCATION

SPEED HUMPS

PLANS FOR PROPOSED

Page 17



N

10 40

Feet

0

AA

¡ OF SPEED HUMP

B

SURFACE

ROAD 

SURFACE

ROAD 

4
.0

0
" 

H
E
I
G

H
T

ELEVATIONS
ADJACENT PAVEMENT

MATCH EXIST.

1
½
"

4
'

(N.T.S.)

SAWCUT
SAWCUT

SECTION A-A SECTION B-B

3
.0

" 
H

E
I
G

H
T

6"

12"12"

6" TAPER

GROUND

EXIST.

1½" MILLING

1
½
" 

SW 116 TER

S
W
 
13

8
 

A
V

S
W
 
13

7
 
P

S
G

S
W
 
13

7
 
P

A
T

H

SW 116 LN

S
W
 
13

7
 

A
V

WITH THERMOPLASTIC YELLOW

COURSE (TRAFFIC C) (FC-9.5)

HOT MIX ASPHALT FRICTION

SITE 1

SITE 2

SITE 3

PROP. SPEED HUMPS

PROP. SPEED HUMPS
LIM

IT

SPEED

15
CAUTION SPEED HUMPS AHEAD

C
A

U
T
IO

N

S
P

E
E

D

H
U

M
P

S

A
H

E
A

D

L
IM

IT

S
P

E
E

D

1
5

C
A
U
T
IO

N

S
P
E
E

D
H

U
M

P
S

A
H

E
A

D

L
IM

IT

S
P

E
E

D

1
5

C
A

U
T
IO

N

S
P

E
E

D

H
U

M
P

S

A
H

E
A

D

L
IM

IT

S
P

E
E

D

1
5

C
A
U
T
IO

N

S
P
E
E

D
H

U
M

P
S

A
H

E
A

D

L
IM

IT

S
P

E
E

D

1
5

SPEED HUMP DETAILS

PROP. SPEED HUMP

VARIES (9.5' OR 13')

18"X24"

R2-1

18"X24"

SIGN-1

18"X24"

R2-1

18"X24"

SIGN-1

18"X24"

R2-1

18"X24"

SIGN-1

18"X24"

R2-1

18"X24"

SIGN-1

18"X24"

R2-1

18"X24"

SIGN-1

18
"X

2
4
"

R
2
-1

18
"X

2
4
"

S
I
G

N
-1

13'

9
.5
'

9
.5
'

9
.5
'

9
.5
'

31.0'

WATER METER

EXIST.

31.8'

31.8'

30.2'

WATER METER

EXIST.

28.3'

6
.9
'

4/6/2023Ccastaneira P:\040102 - Century Breeze - Kendall Breeze West CDD (Yearly Report)\Speed Humps On SW 137 Path, 115 LA & 116 Ter\002-CAD\Planrd01.dgn1:10:19 PM

 MIAMI-DADE 2023

YEAR ROADCOUNTY

DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEET

                        

                        

            

            

SW 116 TER
 SW 115 LN AND

  SW 137 PATH,  ROADWAY PLAN AND DETAILS

 SPEED HUMP
CENTURY BREEZE-KENDALL BREEZE WEST CDD 

2
0
.7
'

2

1½" MILLING 

9.1' 2.2'
EXIST. MEDIAN NOSE

Doral, Florida 33172

8935 N.W. 35 Lane , Suite 101

FLORIDA CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION No. 7538

ALVEREZ ENGINEERS, INC.

PAVEMENT
EXIST. ASPHALT

QUANTITIES

5   SIGN-1-CUSTOM SIGN PANELS "CAUTION SPEED HUMPS AHEAD"

5   R2-1 SIGN PANELS

5   SIGN POSTS

282 SF YELLOW THERMOPLASTIC

1    SPEED HUMP 13' X 4

4    SPEED HUMPS 9.5' X 4'

Page 18



LEGA Striping and More, Inc.
8896 NW 116th St

Hialeah Gardens, FL 33018
(305) 303-7450

legaperea@gmail.com

Change OrderDATE: 5 2

Atte: Ryan Quiroga. 

JOB ADDRESS:

SCOPE OF WORK

Install five (5) U channel post with break away and
sign (SPEED HUMPS) ($325 per unit)

Install and paint five (5) new speed humps ($450 per unit)

Total Amount: $ 3,875.00

Sincerely, 

LEGA Striping and More, Inc 

Price: $2,250

Installation will adhere to the specifications outlined in the Plans 
for Proposed Speed Humps report provided by the client. 
_______________________________________________________________________

Price: $1,625

Page 19



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-04 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
KENDALL BREEZE WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 AND SETTING THE TIME AND 
LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Kendall Breeze West Community Development 

District (the "District") to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2023/2024; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the District has set a regular 

meeting schedule, location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2023/2024 which is 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE KENDALL BREEZE WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted the Board. 

Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted by the Board and 

authorized to be published. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 17th day of May, 2023. 

ATTEST: KENDALL BREEZE WEST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: By: 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 20



KENDALL BREEZE WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  
FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Kendall 
Breeze West Community Development District (the “District”) will hold Regular Meetings in 
the Kendall Breeze West Community Clubhouse Meeting Room located at 11780 SW 138th 
Avenue, Miami, Florida 33186 at 7:00 p.m. on the following dates:  
 

October 18, 2023 
November 15, 2023 
February 21, 2024 

March 20, 2024 
April 17, 2024 
May 15, 2024 
June 19, 2024 

September 18, 2024 
 

The purpose of the meetings is for the Board to consider any District business which may lawfully 
and properly come before the Board. Meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of Florida law for Community Development Districts. Copies of 
the Agenda for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District’s website or by contacting 
the District Manager at nnguyen@sdsinc.org and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922, prior to the date 
of the particular meeting. 
 
From time to time one or two Board members may participate by telephone; therefore, a speaker 
telephone will be present at the meeting location so that Board members may be fully informed of 
the discussions taking place. Said meeting(s) may be continued as found necessary to a time and 
place specified on the record. 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact the 
District Manager at nnguyen@sdsinc.org and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days 
prior to the date of the particular meeting. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time with no advertised notice. 
 
KENDALL BREEZE WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.kendallbreezewestcdd.org 
 
PUBLISH: MIAMI DAILY BUSINESS REVIEW 10/09/23 
 

Page 21

mailto:nnguyen@sdsinc.org
mailto:nnguyen@sdsinc.org
http://www.kendallbreezewestcdd.org/

	Kendall Breeze West Community Development District - May 17, 2023 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	March 15, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget

	Update Regarding Additional Speed Humps (SW 115th Lane & SW 116th Terrace)
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule




